1986

In the Matter of the Investigation of Duane Hall Trucking Inc. v. Public Service Commission : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

- I. Does the Report and Order of the Public Service Commission violate the appellant's freedom of contract as set forth in Article I, Section 10 of the United States Constitution.
- II. Is revocation of the appellant's contract carrier permit and issuance of a common carrier certificate an unreasonable procedure.
- III. What kinds of restrictions can be placed on an open-ended contract carrier.
- IV. What kinds of distinctions are there between an open-ended contract carrier and a common carrier.
- V. Does converting a contract carrier to a common carrier without a showing of the violation of any law constitute a denial of due process.
- VI. Has the Public Service Commission assumed an unreasonable legislative function by eliminating contract carriers from this particular area of transportation.
- VII. Is the order of the Public Service Commission supportable by evidence received, or is the order of an arbitrary nature.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On December 7, 1983, P.W. Martin Water Services, Inc., Sunco Trucking Company and Target Trucking, Inc. initiated this proceeding by filing a Petition with the Public Service Commission (Tr. 1). The Petition was later amended on January 26, 1984 (Tr. 11).

On March 7, 1985, the Public Service Commission (hereinafter referred to as "Commission") issued an Order to Show Cause requiring Duane Hall Trucking, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "DHT") to show why its permit should not be rescinded or converted to a common carrier certificate, why it should not receive penalties for violations of law, or why the Commission should not, in the alternative, issue rules and regulations governing contract carriers such as DHT (Tr. 318).

Following hearings on the matter on May 6, 1985, review of briefs submitted by the parties and having been fully advised in the premises, the Administrative Law Judge issued a Report and Order dated November 5, 1985, that was approved and confirmed by the Commission (Tr. 477). Through the Report and Order, the Commission revoked and rescinded DHT's contract carrier permit No. 557 and issued DHT a new Certificate of Authority No. 2169 to operate as a common carrier. The Report and Order required that DHT comply with all rules and regulations governing common carriers and operate in all respects as a common carrier, specifically

filing with the Commission tariffs and maintaining books and records in accordance with Commission regulations.

On November 21, 1985, DHT filed a Petition for Rehearing of the Commission's Order on the grounds that the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law contained in the Commission's Report and Order were contrary to the preponderance of the evidence and the existing Utah law (Tr. 506). Therefore, DHT alleged, the Commission's Order was unlawfully founded.

On February 5, 1986, the Commission issued an Order Denying Petition for Rehearing (Tr. 542).

DHT filed a Petition for Writ of Certiorari (Tr. 554) and a Motion for Stay of Order (Tr. 550) and requested the Supreme Court to review the lawfulness of the Commission's Report and Order and its Order Denying Petition for Rehearing. DHT also moved the Court for an Order staying and/or suspending operation of the Commission's Report and Order. The Supreme Court issued an Order on May 1, 1986, staying the Order of the Public Service Commission pending appeal. It is the position of DHT that the Commission's Order is contrary to the facts presented and the existing Utah law.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

I. As a contract carrier appellant DHT has entered into numerous contracts with different shippers. By forcing DHT to convert to a common carrier, DHT cannot abide by the contracts already entered into. The contracts each contain different rates not subject to conversion to a common carrier tariff rate. Thus, DHT's contracts have been impaired contract to Article I, § 10, of the United States Constitution. Similarly, DHT's expectation of its own contract carrier permit which was purchased has been impaired.

II. Converting DHT to a common carrier is an unreasonable procedure. There was no showing of violation of any rule or statute by DHT justifying the conversion. It would appear that the conversion was done solely for the convenience of the Public Service Commission. The Public Service Commission is trying to eliminate a class of carriers known as "open-ended contract carriers" without any justification.

III. The Public Service Commission has never adopted rules and regulations pertaining to open-ended contract carriers. By their actions they are attempting to restrict these activities without first adopting applicable rules and regulations.

IV. The Public Service Commission has failed to adopt regulations making a distinction between an open-ended contract carrier and a common carrier. By not adopting rules

and regulations proscribing certain activities, ambiguities exist between the classification of these two carriers. The Public Service Commission cannot impose sanctions without first showing that a rule or regulation was violated.

V. The appellant's due process rights have been violated by being punished without first having violated a rule or regulation. The Public Service Commission should adopt rules and regulations for open-ended contract carriers. Otherwise there is no standard upon which to base a judgment as to what constitutes proper conduct.

VI. The Public Service Commission has attempted to eliminate a class of carriers by this action. The legislature intended that open-ended contract carriers exist. Allowing the Report and Order of the Public Service Commission to stand would provide precedent to abolish all open-ended contract carriers.

VII. There is no evidence to support the conversion of the appellant to a common carrier. There was no showing of a violation of any rule or regulation. There was no showing of price cutting or any other unethical behavior. The Public Service Commission felt that the potential for harm existed and felt this justified their action. It is much more realistic to suggest that rules and regulations be adopted to avoid the potential for harm rather than simply abolish this class of carrier.

ARGUMENT

I. THE COMMISSION'S ORDER AND ITS EFFECTIVE IMPLEMENTATION WOULD VIOLATE THE APPELLANT DHT'S FREEDOM OF CONTRACT AS PROTECTED BY THE UNITED STATES CONSITUTION

Article 1, Section 10 of the United States Constitution provides that, "No state shall pass any law impairing the obligation of contracts." The Commission's Order violates DHT's rights under the contracts clause with respect to the initial contract whereby DHT acquired its permit.

Contract carrier permit number 368 was originally issued on September 18, 1949, to B & M Service Company (see Addendum). It was transferred pursuant to a stock and certificate purchase on December 18, 1963, to B & M Service Incorporated (see Addendum). DHT purchased the authority on March 3, 1976, from B & M Service Incorporated (see Addendum). The contract carrier authority under this permit was expanded in 1977 when the Commission amended the certificate by deleting the restriction of DHT's contract carrier authority, limiting it to just one shipper, Shell Oil Company (see Addendum). DHT purchased the carrier operating authority:

"To operate as a contract motor carrier transporting oil base muds in fluid form, water and other fluids used in the drilling of oil wells and of water, oils and other fluids to be used or consumed in connection with oil drilling or producing operations upon privately owned or controlled property within producing fields or within areas being prospected by oil

drilling operations, over irregular routes, to and from all points and places within the State of Utah where such oil drilling or producing operations are being carried on. The transportation authorized is limited to the described commodities transported in bulk in tank vehicles."

In a Report & Order issued in Case No. 78-188-02 issued December 20, 1978 (see Addendum), the above language was interpreted by the Commission to include the following:

"Now, therefore, it is hereby ordered that the permit number 557 of Duane Hall Trucking, Inc. is construed to include any and all types of liquid fluids in bulk, in tank trucks, used in connection with drilling, completion and working over oil, gas and geothermal wells over irregular routes to and from all points and places within the State of Utah where such drilling or producing operations are being carried on."

The Report issued November 5, 1985 fails to consider this language and denies the right and privilege to conduct its business in accordance with the previous ruling of the Commission issued December 20, 1978. There was no finding or evidence presented to thus restrict the authority issued to DHT.

It was the expectation of DHT that this authority, together with the refinements thereafter added, would be the consideration it would receive by virtue of the contract entered into for the purchase of the permit. The Order by the Commission substantially alters this expectation. This original contract, whereby DHT purchased its contract carrier

authority, has been impaired by the Order issued by the Commission.

DHT is currently bound by contracts it has entered into to transport oil field fluids. The effective implementation of the Commission's Order would necessitate DHT breaching all of these contracts. These contracts were entered into and the parties were bound prior to the Commission's Report & Order. Therefore, the effect of the Order would be a retro-active impairment of DHT's existing contracts with third parties, and thereby a violation of DHT's rights under the contracts clause.

In interpreting the contracts clause, the United States Supreme Court has found it necessary to uphold individual's expectations regarding contracts. It has been the expectation of the parties, both DHT and the third parties to which it is bound, that these contracts for the transport of oil field fluids be honored. The Commission's Order directly and substantially impairs the contractual obligations entered into by DHT. The public interest relied upon by the Commission warranting its actions is insufficient to justify this impairment.

II. REVOCATION BY THE COMMISSION OF
DUANE HALL TRUCKING, INC.'S CONTRACT CARRIER PERMIT AND
ISSUANCE OF A COMMON CARRIER CERTIFICATE
IS AN UNREASONABLE PROCEDURE

The Commission has attempted to revoke DHT's existing contract carrier permit and reissue a common carrier certificate without a showing of justification for doing so. Section 54-6-20, Utah Code Annotated, 1953 (as amended) provides that to revoke an existing permit the Commission must show good cause for the revocation. Rule 6(b) dealing with permits in the Motor Carrier Rules and Regulations states:

"Permits heretofore issued and in good standing shall remain in effect subject to all rules and regulations pertaining thereto."

In order to revoke Duane Hall's existing contract carrier permit, the Commission should have shown a violation of the rules and regulations. The Commission should have shown that Duane Hall Trucking is not in good standing. This is reinforced in the statute §64-6-20, Utah Code Annotated, 1953 (as amended), where it states that revocation or suspension by the Commission is possible at any time for good cause. The Commission admitted in the Report and Order of November 5, 1985, that Duane Hall is not in violation of any rules or regulations.

Commissions similar to the Public Service Commission have revoked licenses of motor carriers for various reasons.

The North Carolina Utilities Commission revoked a company's license when a transfer was made from one individual to another of the control of a company without the prior approval of the Commission. State ex. rel. Utilities Commission v. United Tank Lines, Inc., 239 S.E.2d 266, 34 N.C. App. 543, certiorari allowed 242 S.E.2d 633 (N.C. App. 1977). The same commission revoked another's license when there was a merger of two trucking companies creating an irregular route authority. State ex. rel. Utilities Commission v. Estes Express Lines, 234 S.E.2d 628 (N.C. App. 1977). Abandonment of a special common motor carrier certificate is grounds for revocation of that certificate. Dan Dugan Transport co. v. Maas Transport, Inc., 275 N.W.2d 855 (N.D. 1979). A permit, certificate or license can be revoked for improper movement of goods. Cleveland Freight Lines, Inc. v. Public Utilities Commission, 402 N.E.2d 1192, 62 Ohio St. 2d 50, 16 O.O. 3d 38 (Ohio 1980). DHT has not participated in any of the above activities which would justify revocation of its contract carrier permit, nor did the Commission make any finding of such. The language of DHT's permit specifically explains that failure to comply with the Commission's rules and regulations would be grounds for revocation of that permit. However, DHT has continually complied with the rules and regulations set forth by the Commission pertaining to contract carrier permits.

In the Order to Show Cause issued by the Commission, the Commission alleges that penalties should be imposed upon DHT for violation of the Commission's rules and regulations. The rule violations alluded to are for an excessive number of contracts engaged in by DHT and holding itself out for hire through solicitation by advertising. The Commission has no specific rules or regulations dealing with these alleged violations. In fact, DHT requested clarification of the Commission's position on advertising (Coleman Tr. 28). An agent of the Commission verified that there are no rules or regulations prohibiting advertising by carriers such as DHT.

Suspension of DHT's operating privileges or revocation of its existing contract carrier permit because of the number of active contracts the trucking company currently holds or because of advertising activities is unreasonable. The Commission has not promulgated rules defining, authorizing or prohibiting advertising or restricting the number of contracts held by an open-ended contract carrier.

In Duff Truck Line, Inc. v. Public Utilities Commission, 364 N.E.2d 856, 51 Ohio St. 2d 4, 5 O.O. 3d 2 (Ohio 1977), the Public Utilities Commission suspended the truck line's operating privileges for three days because of cross-hauling, interlining and tacking. The court ruled the suspension unreasonable because the Commission had not promulgated rules defining, authorizing or prohibiting cross-

hauling, tacking or interlining. The court relied on their previous decision in Commercial Motor Freight v. Public Utilities Commission, 46 Ohio St. 2d 195, 348 N.E.2d 132. In both cases, the parties had stipulated that the Commission had not promulgated any rules regarding the alleged violations. Under these circumstances, the court explained, "The suspension penalty was unreasonable." The Supreme Court of Ohio restated its position in Cleveland Freight Lines, Inc. v. Public Utilities Commission, 402 N.E.2d 1192, 62 Ohio St. 2d 50, 16 O.O. 3d 38 (Ohio 1980), when it said,

"When there is not a definite Commission rule, order, or decision forbidding a particular practice, the imposition of a substantial penalty is unreasonable."

The court further indicated that,

"A carrier should not be subjected to a substantial penalty when the carrier could not knowingly be in violation of a definite rule, order, or decision of the Commission or the court since there were no such definite rules, orders, or decisions in existence."

Revocation of DHT's existing contract carrier permit is a substantial penalty. This penalty is harshly unreasonable in view of the fact that the Commission has not issued any rules, orders, or decisions dealing with the practice of advertising by one holding an open-ended contract carrier permit. Additionally, decisions rendered by the Utah Supreme Court indicate that there is to be no limit to the number of active contracts held by an open-ended contract carrier.

III. UNDER UTAH LAW, THERE IS TO BE NO RESTRICTION
ON THE NUMBER OF ACTIVE CONTRACTS HELD UNDER AN
OPEN-END CONTRACT CARRIER AUTHORITY UNLESS
THE RESTRICTION CAN BE FOUND WITHIN
THE FOUR CORNERS OF THE PERMIT

The validity of an open-end contract carrier authority was upheld by the Utah Supreme Court in Murphy v. Public Service Commission, 514 P.2d 804 (Utah 1973). In Murphy, the existence of open-end contract authority was found within the language of the permit. The court interpreted the authority to be such because the permit was not limited to a particular contract for hauling for a particular person. It is the same with the DHT permit. The court explained,

"The extent of plaintiff's authority must be found within the four corners of the permit, and the rights thereunder must be such as are fairly understood from the import of its language. Unless there be some ambiguity or uncertainty, there is no basis for interpretation or clarification of the permit. It is impermissible to go behind the language of the permit and contradict its plain terms."

There was no language in the permit that could be interpreted as restricting the number of contracts that the open-end contract carrier could hold. Similarly, there is no language within the DHT permit which would indicate a restriction on the number of contracts that can be actively held by DHT. Looking within the four corners of the DHT permit, there is no restriction stated on the number of active contracts

allowable. To impose penalties on DHT for the number of active contracts would be unreasonable.

The court's position was affirmed in the second Murphy case, Murphy v. Public Service Commission Of Utah, 539 P.2d 367 (Utah 1975), when the court stated,

"We said her permit was not limited as to number of contracts."

Just as with DHT, the trucking company in question in this case also had an open-end contract carrier authority permit. The Utah Supreme Court has stated that with an open-end contract carrier permit, there can be no restriction as to the number of active contracts held unless the restriction can be found within the four corners of the permit. The Commission stated in its Report and Order, "Under the permit, DHT may enter into any number of contracts . . ."

IV. DUANE HALL TRUCKING HAS RECOGNIZED AND ABIDED
BY ANY DISTINCTIONS BETWEEN CONTRACT AND COMMON
CARRIERS RECOGNIZED BY THE COMMISSION OR THE UTAH
SUPREME COURT AND HAS COMPLIED WITH ALL COMMISSION
RULES AND REGULATIONS REGARDING CONTRACT CARRIERS

The Commission has defined both common and contract motor carriers in its Motor Carrier Rules and Regulations. In the Rules and Regulations, the Commission has defined a common motor carrier of property as,

"Any person who holds himself out to the public as willing to undertake for hire to transport by motor vehicle from place to place, the property of others who may choose to employ him." Motor Carrier Rules and Regulations, Dl.1.

The Commission has defined a contract motor carrier of property as,

"Any person engaged in the transportation by motor vehicle of property for hire and not included in the term 'common motor carrier of property' as hereinbefore defined." Motor Carrier Rules and Regulations, Dl.1.

The distinction between a common carrier and a contract carrier as set forth by the Commission is that a common carrier holds himself out to the public. Within the Motor Carrier Rules and Regulations, the Commission gives no further explanation of what it means to "hold himself out to the public." Yet, the fact or not of a public holding out has remained the final or ultimate test of common carriage vs. contract carriage. N.S. Craig Contract Carrier Application, MC-5724 (1941).

It is difficult to establish what is meant by "a public holding out." It has been explained to be evidenced by such things as general solicitation and offers of service, by general repute, advertising, and personal correspondence. Transportation Activities of Midwest Transfer Co. of Illinois, et al., MC-C-07 (1948). However, none of these considerations are conclusive. The major distinction between contract and common carriers appears to be specialization. A contract

carrier performs a specialized service, either in the nature of his physical operation or with respect to the shippers he serves. While a common carrier will transport all persons who request his services, a contract carrier "renders a transportation service only to specific parties with whom it has contracts to do so." Realty Purchasing Company v. Public Service Commission, 345 P.2d 606 (Utah 1959).

The Utah Supreme Court gave light to the distinction in explaining what might be necessary to show one has held himself out to the public. The court stated,

"The fact that each of them engages in transportation for hire is not sufficient evidence that they hold themselves out to the public to do so. Such a holding would make it possible to convert all contract carriers into common carriers, a result which obviously is not intended by our code. McCarthy v. Public Service Commission, 116 U. 376, 210 P.2d 558 (Utah 1947).

A showing that DHT engages in transportation for hire is not enough to show that it engages in a holding out to the public. The court found that the trucking authority in the McCarthy case had not held itself out to the public. Thus, the court explained that the Commission's actions in classifying the trucking authority as a common carrier was an error in law because it lacked proper foundation. The court's decision was supported by the fact that the "trend of the testimony is all toward individually negotiated contracts." The court cited language by the New York court in dealing with a similar case, stating:

"The uncontradicted and undisputed testimony is that applicant has always negotiated an agreement for even individual shipments and has never undertaken to handle any freight if unable to arrive at some mutually satisfactory agreement to make the transportation. Applicant has never held itself out to carry for anybody that might call upon it to transport goods. An agreement is made for each individual movement." Motor Haulage Co. v. Maltbie, 293 N.Y. 338, 57 N.E.2d 41.

DHT does not now and does not intend to hold itself out as performing transportation for the public generally. Its business structure and equipment has been designed to provide a specific, direct, tailored service for those with whom it contracts. Advertising done by DHT is mostly in the nature of public service announcements. None of its advertising directly calls to the public soliciting its business. DHT continues to recognize the distinction between its contract carrier permit and the common carrier certificates held by others.

V. THE DEPRIVATION OF DHT'S CONTRACT CARRIER AUTHORITY
DUE TO THE COMMISSION'S ORDER REPRESENTS A
SUBSTANTIAL DENIAL OF ITS DUE PROCESS RIGHTS

The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution protects individuals against the deprivation of life, liberty or property without due process of law. Due process requires that individuals be given notice and a fair hearing prior to the taking of property. It is axiomatic that the due process right includes the right to a fair hearing.

Within the permit issued to DHT, it is clearly stated that failure to comply with its provisions will be grounds for revocation. DHT has continually complied with all of the provisions contained therein. However, by the Commission's Order, DHT will suffer a substantial penalty while there has been no showing of wrongdoing. The Report & Order issued by the Commission repeatedly states throughout that there is no evidence, beyond mere opportunity, of any wrongdoing by DHT. At best, it alludes to the existence of a potential for wrongdoing. Notions of fair play and substantial justice are certainly denied when DHT is punished because of the existence of a possibility for wrongdoing, a possibility which has never been taken advantage of.

The Commission in its report explains that a balancing test is the proper approach to be taken by the Commission in determining whether its action is in the public interest. It is explained:

"This requires a balancing of the public benefits, resulting from the continued existence of the permit as written against the detriment to the public and its common carriers, and against the benefits to the public, should the conversion to common carrier remain."

The Commission fails to state the source of this balancing test or its supporting authority.

Nowhere in the Commission's balancing test are the rights or privileges of DHT considered or weighed. DHT holds

a valid property right in the motor carrier permit as purchased and refined. DHT's valid property right certainly deserves protection in this instance, and this interest should at minimum be given consideration in the determination of the continued existence of the DHT contract carrier permit. The public interest is not substantial enough to justify the action taken by the Commission. The Commission's balancing test, as applied, is contrary to the law.

VI. BY ITS ORDER, THE COMMISSION ELIMINATES
ALL CONTRACT CARRIERS FROM THIS AREA OF TRANSPORTATION
SERVICES AND THEREBY EFFECTIVELY ATTEMPTS
TO ASSUME A LEGISLATIVE ROLE WITHOUT POSSESSING
PROPER LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY

It is clear from the provisions of Title 54, Chapter 6, Utah Code Annotated, 1953 (as amended) that the Legislature had the specific intent that there be two classes of motor carriers of property, both a common and a contract. Throughout Chapter 6, frequent reference is made both to common and contract motor carriers. Provisions and regulations were drafted and passed with respect to both classes.

Prior to this Order by the Commission, there existed in the area of transportation of oil field fluids motor carriers in both classifications. By its Order, the Commission attempts to remove the contract carrier classifica-

tion from this motor vehicle transportation area. By taking away the DHT contract carrier permit, one of the two classifications is abolished. Even the Commission notes within its report that, "It (DHT) is the only contract carrier permit of its type involving the transportation of oil field fluids." By revoking the DHT contract carrier permit, the Commission is abolishing the designation set forth by the Legislature. Only one class of motor carrier remains, that of common motor carrier.

By so doing, the Commission is trespassing into law-making area reserved for legislative bodies. The Commission does not have the authority to pass legislation, though here it attempts to do so.

The Legislature perceived a public benefit to be had by the designation of both common and contract motor carriers. DHT, as the only contract carrier of its kind providing this transportation service, is a necessary part of the entire regulatory scheme set forth by the Legislature. DHT acts as a market regulator, keeping rates low. Without the existence of a contract motor carrier in this market, the possibility exists that the common carriers could more easily enter into a price fixing scheme. It is because of the competition that DHT offers to the common motor carriers that the rates in the existing structure are kept at a reasonable rate, while the service is efficient.

The Commission explains in its Report and Order that common motor carriers are required to submit tariffs in order to assure that the rates are not unreasonably excessive for the shipping public. However, it appears that the Petitioner's complaint against DHT is that its rates are too low. Competition is a market factor that assures low rates and high service. By withdrawing the only contract carrier providing this type of motor carrier services, the Commission has removed the mechanism set forth by the Legislature to keep prices down and service high. In McCarthy, Mulcahey and PBI, cases cited in the Division of Public Utilities brief submitted in this matter, the court found that there must be a finding of an increase of public welfare before conversion can be had of an existing permit (Tr. 368). Rather than an increase of public benefit, a definite decrease would take place if the only contract motor carrier designation were removed from this segment of the transportation marketplace.

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