1986

Hugh P. Vonzell Ruhsam, Jr. v. Janet Elizabeth Ruhsam : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

There is no evidence whatsoever to support the allegations of the Appellant that there has been an abuse of discretion by the Court as to the division of the real and personal property assets of the parties and in the Court's awarding to the Appellant a fair share of the military retirement of the Respondent as dictated by the case law of the State of Utah, and as is more particularly set forth hereinafter in Respondent's Brief.

The property distribution ordered by the Court is a equal distribution of all of the real and personal property assets of the parties, and the award made by the Court as permanent alimony and as permanent retirement participation

by the Appellant, together with the assets awarded to the Appellant and even considering the previous earning capacity which has been admitted as earned by the Appellant, the Appellant's monthly income is substantially in excess of the needs of the Appellant as was set forth at R. 86 by the Appellant's Affidavit as to what the Appellant deemed was necessary for continued maintenance, without in any way invading or impairing the substantial assets which the Appellant has received by reason of the decree of the Court in dividing the assets of the parties.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE LOWER COURT MADE AN EQUITABLE DIVISION OF ALL ASSETS OF THE MARRIAGE

There is no evidence whatsoever upon which to make allegation that the division of assets, as between the parties, was inequitable and an abuse of discretion of the Court.

This Court has held in Cox vs. Cox, 532 P.2d 1994 (Supreme Court of Utah, 1975) that there was no fixed formula which a Trial Judge must follow in making a division of properties. In Hamilton vs. Hamilton, 562 P.2d 235 (Supreme Court of Utah, 1977), this Court stated that it is the

prerogative of the Court to make whatever disposition of property it deems fair, equitable and necessary for the protection and welfare of the parties, and in Jespersion vs. Jespersen, 610 P.2d 326 (Supreme Court of Utah, 1980), this Court stated that the Lower Court's division of property and assets will not be disturbed on appeal unless the record shows there has been an abuse of discretion.

This is a marriage between two (2) adult persons who had each been previously marriage, (R. 96) and with no children as the issue of the marriage between the parties herein.

The parties were intermarried on December 18, 1970 and were married for a period of fourteen (14) years. (R. 96) At the time of the divorce, the Appellant was forty-nine (49) years of age, (R. 248) and the Respondent was fifty-six (56) years of age. (TR. 217)

The Appellant, in her Brief, seeks to show that at the age of forty-nine (49), she is practically totally incapacitated and requires the lifetime assistance of the Respondent because of the Appellant's practical total disability.

The Appellant produced an expert witness, Dr. Lyle H. Archibald, a general surgeon, who is a personal physician to the Appellant, as an expert witness in regards to the dis-

ability of the Appellant, and upon cross-examination by counsel for Respondent, the following dialogue was recorded:

Question: Okay. Do you see any -- Do you see any problems physically from the operation you performed on Mrs. Ruhsam that would hinder her from gaining some type of employment? I am not talking about digging ditches, you understand that.

Answer: No, I am sure she is physically capable of performing some kind of employment or being employed in some form of work.

Question: Such as a secretary maybe? A receptionist?

Answer: I think that some of those skills she would be able to do, yes. (R. 196-197)

Question: In connection with people that have undergone the type of surgery you performed and with the prior surgery, do you know whether these people would be candidates to receive social security benefits?

Answer: I don't.

Question: Or SSI benefits?

Answer: No I don't. (TR. 197)

Question: Well, let me ask you this doctor, I would assume you have performed many of these operations?

Answer: I have.

Question: And do you recommend to people becoming active after the operation?

Answer: I recommend that they don't change their lifestyle, that they continue doing what they were doing pre-operatively.

Question: If they were working, they should work and do the things they use to do before?

Answer: That's right.

Question: Would you make the same recommendation for Mrs. Ruhsam?

Answer: I would. (TR. 198)

The Respondent is fifty-six (56) years of age and retired from the Air Force with a VA disability rating of 10%. (TR. 217) At the time of Respondent's retirement from the Air Force, he had been married to the Appellant for eight (8) years and four and a half ($4\frac{1}{2}$) months, for a total of 100.5 months. (TR. 217)

The Court made an equitable division of the assets of the parties, by acknowledging that the items of gold, silver and cash reserve management accounts that have already been divided shall be accepted by the Court and considers it as each having received one-half ($\frac{1}{2}$) of those assets, which in accordance with Exhibit 11P, is a division of \$34,542.00 to each of the parties.

The Appellant is possessed of gold coins and silver from a prior marriage, with a value in the sum of \$18,950.00. (Exhibit 11P)

The Appellant will further receive the approximate sum of \$45,500.00 from the sale of real estate divided at the time of the Decree of Divorce which added to the previous sums possessed or received by the Appellant makes a total share of the Appellant in the assets of the marriage in the amount of \$98,992.00. (Exhibit 11P)

The Appellant's Affidavit of the funds deemed by the Appellant as necessary for her support as set forth in her sworn Affidavit, Exhibit R86, evidences a total need of the Appellant for the month in the sum of \$1,326.50.

Considering the return on funds in the amount of \$98,000.00 as set forth hereinabove, which the Appellant will possess, plus the participation in the retirement of the Respondent in the sum of \$457.32, (which will increase with cost of living increases granted to retired personnel) and alimony in the sum of \$600.00 monthly, would appear to be a more than equitable share of the earnings of the Respondent, where the Appellant is seven (7) years younger than the Respondent, has no issue to care for and in addition, admits earnings of \$200.00 a month from the spare time selling of Avon products.

The calculation and division of the retirement of the Respondent was done in accordance with the formula set forth

by the Supreme Court in Woodward vs. Woodward, 656 P.2d 431 (Supreme Court of Utah, November 4, 1982).

In DeMard Jones vs. Harriet H. Jones, 8 UAR 14 _____ P.2d at _____, this Court ruled on a property distribution and alimony settlement, wherein the parties were married for twenty-eight (28) years, had four (4) children as the issue of the marriage, had a retail business as the primary income-producing asset of the marriage, where the husband was a licensed pharmacist and wherein the wife spent her time raising the children, and wherein the alimony was in a reducing amount, with the Court holding that the wife was awarded only a small portion of the marital assets, thereby making the distribution inequitable.

In the instant matter before the Court, none of the elements of the Jones case are present.

This Court has previously held in Higley vs. Higley, 676 P.2d 379 (Supreme Court of Utah, 1983); and Dority vs. Dority, 645 P.2d 56 (Supreme Court of Utah, 1982) and in English vs. English, 565 P.2d 409 (Supreme Court of Utah, 1977), that the Trial Court has broad latitude in such matters and the orders distributing property and setting alimony will not be lightly disturbed. There is no question of a 50/50 division of all of the assets of the marriage

misunderstanding or misapplication of the law resulting in substantial and prejudicial error; or that the evidence clearly preponderates against the findings as made; or a serious inequity has resulted as to manifest a clear abuse of discretion. (Mitchell vs. Mitchell, 527 P.2d 1359, Supreme Court of Utah, 1974)

The contention of the Appellant that the Court abused its discretion in giving to each party the exclusive right to the use and sale of the property six (6) months at a time so that the property might be sold and setting forth the division of the personal property in a manner that will effectively assist in division of such personal property was done in a manner by the Court to expedite and not prolong the hostility between the parties, and the Court stated:

"The Court has considered at length how the division of properties might be made. The Court deems a suggested division of each side to be plagued by self-interest. The Court encourages the parties to attempt to negotiate the details of the division during the next thirty (30) days. If they have not arrived at a detail split in accordance with the general principle that everything is to be divided equally, the Court will attempt to make such an outline." (R. 95-99)

The Court further made a division on the basis of the Appellant's list of property submitted and used exclusively

the Appellant's list from which to make a division of the personal property of the parties and set forth an alternate method, of each selecting an item until all items on the list of the Appellant had been selected, provided that there could not be an agreement between the parties within the thirty (30) days the Court allotted to the Appellant and Respondent to arrive at an agreement. (R. 100-101)


CONCLUSION

It is submitted to this Honorable Court that the Court has gone the last mile to make an equitable division of all of the assets of the marriage as between the parties, and that there has been no abuse of discretion by the Court, in that every element has been considered from the evidence introduced into Court, and there is no evidence whatsoever of bias or prejudice on the part of the Court or of any intent on the part of the Court to do other than make a just and equitable division of the assets of the parties and expedite same so that each may be divorced and separated from each other and have a continued happy and productive

life apart from each other.